
Special Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Date Friday 8 February 2019
Time 9.30 am
Venue Committee Room 2 - County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's 

agreement.

1. Apologies  
2. Substitute Members  
3. Declarations of Interest, if any  
4. Any items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties  
5. Flood Risk Management Authorities for County Durham - Overview of 

activities:  
a) Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships  

(Pages 3 - 8)
b) Water management in the emerging County Durham Plan - 

Progress:  (Pages 9 - 24)
a) Policy in emerging County Durham Plan
b) Presentation by Senior Policy Officer, Spatial Policy, 

Regeneration and Local Services
c) Presentations by the Flood Risk Management Authorities for 

County Durham:  (Pages 25 - 78)
a) Environment Agency – Environment Programme Manager
b) Durham County Council – Head of Technical Services, 

Regeneration and Local Services
c) Northumbrian Water Ltd. – Sustainable Sewerage Manager

6. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  



Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
31 January 2019

To: The Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor E Adam (Chair)
Councillor O Milburn (Vice-Chair)

Councillors B Avery, D Bell, L Brown, J Carr, J Clark, R Crute, 
S Dunn, A Gardner, D Hicks, P Howell, P Jopling, C Kay, 
R Manchester, C Martin, A Patterson, A Simpson, P Sexton and 
M Wilson

Co-opted Members:
Mr T  Bolton and Mrs P Holding

Contact: Paula Nicholson Email: 03000 269710



Environment and Sustainable Communities
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee

8 February 2019

DCC’s Water Management Policies
in the emerging County Durham (CDP) and activities
 of the Flood Risk Management Authorities for County Durham

Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships

Electoral division(s) affected:
 Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1 To provide background information for Members on the role and 

responsibilities of the Environment and Sustainable Communities OSC  
(ESC OSC) as the Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management 
Committee for County Durham prior to receiving a presentation on the 
water management policies within the County Durham Plan and 
presentations from the Flood Risk Management Authorities (RMAs) for 
County Durham. 

Executive summary
2 The ESC OSC has been designated by DCC as the Flood and Coastal 

Erosion Risk Management Committee for County Durham to comply 
with the requirements of the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 
and the Localism Act 2011.

3 In 2014, the committee carried out a scrutiny review of flood risk 
management arrangement in County Durham and made several 
recommendations.  The review report included a recommendation that 
in addition to receiving reports and presentations following flooding 
incidents in the county, the ESC OSC in its role as the Flood and 
Coastal Erosion Risk Management Committee engages with the RMAs 
for County Durham on an annual basis.

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



4 The first annual meeting with the RMAs was held in 4 February 2015 
where members received presentations from Durham County Council 
(Lead Local Flood Authority for County Durham), Northumbrian Water 
Ltd ( NWL) and the Environment Agency (EA).  Subsequently, the 
committee when considering its future work programme in July ensures 
that a special meeting with the RMAs is scheduled in February.  In 
addition to the RMAs attending this meeting arrangements were made 
for the meeting to provide detail of the water management policies 
within the emerging County Durham Plan.

5 Arrangements have been made for representatives from the RMAs to 
attend the special meeting of ESC OSC on the 8 February 2019 with 
presentations providing detail of:

 Investment programmes including detail of funding

 Flood mitigation schemes undertaken including details of partnership
Working

 Future plans including detail of investment planned and various 
Schemes

 Challenges/opportunities

In addition, arrangements have been made for an officer from Spatial 
Planning and Policy to attend the meeting to deliver a presentation 
providing detail of the water management policies proposed in the 
County Durham Plan.

A copy of the presentations are attached as appendix 2.  

Recommendations
6 That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee in its role as the Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk 
Management Committee for County Durham note and comment upon 
the information provided in the respective presentations.

7 That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee in its role as the Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk 
Management Committee for County Durham receive further 
presentations from the Risk Management Authorities at a future special 
meeting of the committee arranged for February 2020. 

 

Page 4



Background
8 As part of the refresh of the work programme in 2013/14 the 

Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
identified flooding as the topic for a focused scrutiny review.  Members 
of the committee felt that flooding was a topical issue with flooding 
incidents in the county causing damage to local communities and 
impacting on service delivery.  The review focused on ensuring that the 
policies and plans that DCC and partners had in place to deal with 
flooding incidents were ‘fit for purpose’.

9 The review commenced in October 2013, consisted of eight meetings 
together with visits to various flood mitigation schemes within the 
County and concluded in May 2014.  The review process involved 
receiving information from the RMAs for County Durham, DCC, NWL 
and the EA.  The report and recommendations were considered by 
Cabinet on the 10 September, 2014 and shared with the County 
Durham Environment Partnership Board in December, 2014.

10 At the review group meeting held on the 14 March 2014 members 
received a report detailing the specific role for Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees of Lead Local Flood Authorities (DCC is the Lead Local 
Flood Authority for County Durham) under the Flood and Water 
Management Act 2010 and the Localism Act 2011.  Under this 
legislation Overview and Scrutiny within DCC has to designate an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee as the Flood and Coastal Erosion 
Risk Management Committee for County Durham.  The Environment 
and Sustainable Communities OSC has been designated this role for 
the purposes of the legislation

11 At the meeting of the scrutiny review group held on the 14 March 2014, 
Members commented that they felt the ESC OSC had taken a reactive 
role receiving reports and presentation following flooding incidents in 
the county and that there was a need for the committee to be pro-active 
in its future approach.

12 It was therefore recommended by the scrutiny review report that the 
ESC OSC engage with the RMAs for County Durham on an annual 
basis (Recommendation 2 of the review report).  In addition, the 
committee has also undertaken visits to see the progress and 
development of various flood mitigation schemes in the county and also 
receives the minutes of the Northumbria Regional Flood and Coastal 
Committee and the Durham Strategic Flood Prevention Group. 

13 As a result of the recommendation, the committee when considering its 
future work programme in July ensures that a special meeting with the 
RMAs is scheduled in February.  In addition to the RMAs attending this 
meeting arrangements were made for the meeting on the 2 February 

Page 5



2018 to provide detail of the water management policies within the 
emerging County Durham Plan.

14 Arrangements have been made for representatives from the RMAs to 
attend the special meeting of ESC OSC on the 8 February 2019 with 
presentations providing detail of:

 Investment programmes including detail of funding

 Flood mitigation schemes undertaken including details of partnership
Working

 Future plans including detail of investment planned and various 
Schemes

 Challenges/opportunities

In addition, arrangements have been made for an officer from Spatial 
Planning and Policy to attend the meeting to deliver a presentation 
providing detail of the water management policies proposed in the 
emerging County Durham Plan.

A copy of the presentations are attached as appendix 2.

15 As part of the committee’s role as the Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk 
Management Committee for County Durham included in its current work 
programme is a further visit to various flood mitigation in the county for 
April 2019. 

Main implications
16 The ESC OSC in its role as the as the Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk 

Management Committee for County Durham will have questioned the 
RMAs for County Durham on projects/schemes undertaken, funding, 
challenges and opportunities and will have the opportunity to raise any 
issues.

17 In addition, the committee will have the opportunity to comment on the 
further development of the water management policies in the emerging 
County Durham Plan following the Preferred Options consultation.

Conclusions 

18 The committee continues to be pro-active in undertaking its role as the 
Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Committee for County 
Durham, engaging with the RMAs on an annual basis to determine 
whether their policies and programmes are ‘fit for purpose’ in mitigating 
flood risk in the county.

Page 6



Background papers
 Flooding scrutiny review report 2014

 Environment and Sustainable Communities OSC – 2 February 
2018 – Risk Management Authorities for County Durham

Other useful documents
 None

Contact: Tom Gorman Tel:  03000 268027

Diane Close Tel:  03000 268141

Page 7



Appendix 1: Implications

Legal Implications
Not applicable

Finance
Not applicable

Consultation
Not applicable 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
Not applicable 

Human Rights
Not applicable

Crime and Disorder
Not applicable

Staffing
Not applicable

Accommodation
Not applicable

Risk
Not applicable

Procurement
Not applicable

Page 8



Water Management and Water Infrastructure

Policy 36

Water Management

Flood Risk and Sustainable Drainage Systems

All development proposals will be required to consider the effect of the proposed development
on flood risk, both on-site and off-site, commensurate with the scale and impact of the development
and taking into account the predicted impacts of climate change for the lifetime of the proposal.
This includes completion of a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) where appropriate. Development
will not be permitted unless:

a. in the functional floodplain (flood zone 3b), as identified in the Strategic FRA, it is water
compatible or essential infrastructure;

b. in flood zones 2 and 3a it passes the Sequential Test, and if necessary the Exceptions Test,
as required by national policy; and

c. it can be proven through a FRA that the development, including the access, will be safe,
without increasing or exacerbating flood risk elsewhere, any residual risk can be safely
managed and where possible will reduce flood risk overall(129).

Regarding Surface Water Flood Risk:

d. for major developments (130) the management of water must be an intrinsic part of the overall
development;

e. on all new development there is no net increase in surface water runoff for the lifetime of
the development. Where greenfield sites are to be developed, the runoff rates must not
exceed and where possible should reduce the existing greenfield runoff rates(131). On
previously developed land, as close as practicable to a greenfield rate must be achieved.
In exceptional cases where the developer can satisfactorily demonstrate that greenfield
run-off rates are unachievable, a betterment rate (which should be a minimum of 50% of
the existing site run-off rate) will be agreed with the council(132). Surface water run-off must
be managed at source wherever possible and disposed of in the following order:

1. To an infiltration or soak away system.

2. To a watercourse open or closed.

3. To a surface water sewer.

4. To a combined sewer.

129 In flood zone 1 an FRA will only be required for sites over one hectare, where it has been identified as being within in a critical
drainage area or where proposed development or a change of use to a more vulnerable class may be subject to other sources
of flooding.

130 See Glossary for definition.
131 Existing greenfield run off rates for different areas in the county are set out in the Surface Water Management Plan 2011.
132 In line with the County Durham Surface Water Management Plan 2011 and the Durham County Council Sustainable Drainage

Systems (SuDS) Adoption Guide 2016 or any subsequent iterations

195Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Page 9

Agenda Item 5b



Disposal to combined sewers should be the last resort once all other methods have
been clearly explored and evidenced;

f. part of the development site is set aside for surface water management and uses measures
that do not increase flood risk elsewhere. These measures will supplement green
infrastructure networks, thereby contributing to mitigation of climate change, water quality and
flooding as an alternative to, or complementary to, hard engineering;

g. where sites may be susceptible to over land flood flows (as shown in the Strategic Flood
Risk Assessment) or lie within a Surface Water Risk Area (as shown in the Surface Water
Management Plan) then developers must put adequate protection in place;

h. the development incorporates a Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) to manage surface
water drainage. Where SuDS are provided arrangements must be put in place for their
whole life management and maintenance. Where appropriate SuDS should contribute to
the provision of Green Infrastructure and biodiversity net gains; and

i. all new development with culverts running through the site must seek to de-culvert
watercourses for flood risk management and environmental benefit, unless it can be clearly
demonstrated that this is not practical.

Where improvement works are required to ensure that the drainage infrastructure has sufficient
capacity to support proposed new development, developer contributions will be required in
accordance with Policy 26 (Developer Contributions).

Water Quality

The quantity and quality of surface and groundwater bodies shall be protected and where
possible enhanced. All commercial, industrial and major residential development must
demonstrate control of the quality of surface water runoff during construction and for the lifetime
of the development. New development will be required to incorporate appropriate water pollution
control measures.

Development adjacent to, over or in a watercourse should consider opportunities to improve the
river environment and water quality.

Development which could adversely affect the quality or quantity of surface or groundwater, flow
of groundwater or ability to abstract water will not be permitted unless it can be demonstrated
that no adverse impact would occur or mitigation could be put in place to minimise this impact.

Policy 37

Water Infrastructure

Disposal of Foul Water

In the consideration of development proposals, the hierarchy of drainage options that must be
considered and discounted for foul water are (in the following order):

1. Connection to the public sewer;

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019196

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Page 10



2. Package sewage treatment plant (which can be offered to the Sewerage Undertaker for
adoption(133);

3. Septic Tank (which must drain into an appropriate soak away and not discharge directly
into a watercourse).

Applications involving the use of non-mains methods of drainage (including Septic Tanks/Cess
Pits) will not be permitted in areas where public sewerage exists.

Sewage and Waste Water Infrastructure

Proposals for new or extensions/improvements to existing water treatment, waste water, sludge
or sewage treatment works will be permitted, unless the adverse impact of development outweighs
the need for greater capacity and other benefits.

Flood Defence Infrastructure

Proposals for additional flood defences will be permitted only where it can be demonstrated that
the proposal represents the most sustainable response to a particular threat and demonstrates
long term maintenance can be achieved.

Proposals which seek to mitigate flooding, create natural flood plains or seek to enhance and/or
expand flood plains in appropriate locations will be permitted.

5.387 The water environment is vital for its contribution to the county’s biodiversity and is important
to the quality of life of people both within and outside the county. Development must be within
environmental limits and carefully consider how the water environment will be affected. Howwastewater
can be safely disposed of, the protection of vulnerable aquifers (including Environment Agency
designated Drinking Water Protected Areas (DrWPAs) and Groundwater Source Protection
Zones (134)and the prevention of increased flooding are key considerations in developing sustainable
communities.

5.388 The Environment Agency is the regulator for licensing abstractions, pollution control and the
quality of the water environment, whilst Northumbrian Water Limited (NWL) is responsible for water
services and sewerage. The council has been working closely with the Environment Agency and
NWL, and we will continue to collaborate with them and other infrastructure providers to inform future
decision making.

5.389 The council as the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), is responsible for developing,
maintaining and applying a strategy for local flood risk management and for maintaining a register of
flood risk assets. We also have lead responsibility for managing the risk of flooding from surface
water, groundwater and all watercourses that are not classified as a main river (which are the
responsibility of the Environment Agency).

5.390 As the LLFA, we are a statutory consultee for surface water flood risk on all sites and ensure
that the proposed drainage system applies the principles of the surface water management train and
meets the National Standards for Sustainable Drainage 2011(135) covering design, construction,
operation andmaintenance. The council will consider adopting SuDS onmajor developments providing

133 Package plants must comply with the Sewers for Adoption standards in order for them to be
adopted. https://www.nwl.co.uk/business/dev-sewerage-services.aspx

134 EA mapping can be accessed via https://magic.defra.gov.uk/MagicMap.aspx
135 https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/82421/suds-consult-annexa-national-standards-111221.pdf

197Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Page 11



they meet specific design and maintenance criteria, as set out in the Durham County Council
Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) Adoption Guide, which also provides guidance on applying
the surface water management train(136).

5.391 The Water Cycle Study (WCS)(137) was carried out to ensure that the growth envisaged for
the county can be supported and is not hindered by water infrastructure and resources. This has
informed the Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) as well as allocations in this Plan. Water shortage is
a great concern in relation to climate change, however the WCS identifies that due to the presence
of Kielder Reservoir, Northumbrian Water is confident that "both of the Company's water resource
zones have a supply surplus across the full planning period to 2060".

5.392 The Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA)(138)provides an overview of the areas
susceptible to flooding and the risk posed by flooding from rivers, the North Sea, groundwater and
surface water runoff. The SFRA assessed the risk at the time it was prepared, as well as the increased
risk from a number of factors including a changing climate and the construction of new development.
It is also necessary to take into account updated Environment Agency flood maps which may include
changes to flood zones 2 and 3, which have occurred since the SFRA was completed together with
up to date climate change allowances.

5.393 The Surface Water Management Plan (SWMP)(139) contains more detail and informs and
interacts with the Plan by giving action plans and priorities for each area, in line with our proactive
approach to flood risk and climate change. It identifies SurfaceWater Risk Areas (SWRAs) and has an
action plan for these and other issues. Additional attenuation measures are required within these
areas including decreasing the volume of surface water entering the combined sewer system by
managing this on-site or disposing to a watercourse where flood risk would not be increased. The
removal of surface water from combined sewers has two benefits - the reduction in downstream
sewer flooding risk and the reduction in unnecessary treatment of surface water at sewage treatment
works (thereby increasing available capacity). The majority of SWRAs are in the east of the county
or around the urban conurbations. Critical Drainage Areas have also been identified and development
in these areas will need careful consideration including a Flood Risk Assessment where appropriate.

5.394 It is acknowledged that over the life time of the Plan, groundwater levels in some areas will
increase, due to wetter climates and changes to mine water pumping regimes. The Coal Authority in
partnership with the Environment Agency has developed a groundwater screening tool which seeks
to raise awareness of a variety of mining and groundwater constraints which could affect development
and to influence the type of SuDS which may be used, to ensure they are appropriate and effective,
both now and in the future. This screening tool has been introduced to provide developers and
competent authorities with a better understanding of the drainage implications they will need to
consider within new development proposals, and if necessary to seek pre-consultation advice with
the Coal Authority and/or the Environment Agency. The screening tool is currently part of a North
East pilot and is being tested by Local Authorities and Northumbrian Water Group which will be
reviewed in 2019. The mapping and guidance document can be found on the Coal Authority
webpage. (140)

5.395 The River Tyne, Wear and Tees Catchment Partnerships were established under Defra's
Catchment based approach in 2014. The partnerships include representatives from a range of
organisations, including the Environment Agency, Local Authorities, Northumbrian Water, the Rivers
Trusts as well as a number of other stakeholders. Their purpose is to support flood management,
environmental enhancement and water quality improvement at a catchment scale. This allows partners

136 https://durhamcc.objective.co.uk/portal/planning/cdpev/
137 http://durhamcc-consult.limehouse.co.uk/file/4958669
138 http://durhamcc-consult.limehouse.co.uk/file/4958652
139 https://durhamcc.objective.co.uk/portal/planning/cdpev/
140 http://mapapps2.bgs.ac.uk/coalauthority/home.html

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019198

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Page 12



to work collaboratively across administrative boundaries, avoid competing for resources and maximise
the benefits of projects being delivered on the ground. This approach is welcomed and encouraged
when looking at wider flood risk implications and mitigation opportunities. More information about the
role of the Partnerships and current project delivery can be found on their respective websites. (141)

Flood Risk

5.396 In County Durham flood risk is mainly fluvial, from rivers and watercourses, although we are
seeing increasing events of surface and ground water flooding due to climate change and development
pressure. The SFRA assesses all sources of flood risk including fluvial, surface water, ground water,
sewer and highway drainage flooding. National policy is clear that planning policy should minimise
vulnerability and provide resilience to impacts arising from climate change and avoid inappropriate
development in areas at risk of flooding, which is primarily done through sequential/exception testing
in line with National Planning Practice Guidance. Where there is the possibility of any flood risk to a
proposed development site, or the potential for flood risk impact on other sites, a site-specific Flood
Risk Assessment will be required, once it has passed the sequential and exception test. The sequential
test can also be used to inform site layout by locating the most vulnerable elements of a development
in the lowest risk areas as well as building in resilience into a site's design for example through raised
floor levels or dry pedestrian access routes.

Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)

5.397 Green infrastructure can be an important flood management and flood mitigation mechanism
as well as providing benefits for communities, wildlife, biodiversity, ecological networks and helping
to reduce the impact of climate change. Similarly SuDS can make a contribution to the green
infrastructure provided on a site. If surface water is removed from combined sewers it increases their
capacity, therefore reducing the risk of sewer flooding downstream and reducing the unnecessary
treatment of surface water at sewage treatment works (thereby increasing available capacity). This
is particularly important to development proposed in key SWRAs, as identified in the SWMP.

5.398 SuDS and green infrastructure can also prevent pollution by filtration of surface water run-off
thereby contributing to improvements in the quality of watercourses in line with legislation thereby
contributing to theWater Framework Directive objectives. The Northumbria River Basin Management
Plan prepared by the Environment Agency is the key over-arching source of information on the water
environment including the condition of water bodies and measures to help meet Water Framework
Directive objectives. (142) Developers will be encouraged to explore how SuDS within their scheme
can achieve reductions to wider catchment flood risk issues where possible. This reduction in flow
rate is termed by the industry as ‘Betterment’.

5.399 SuDS developments in the south east of the county may fall within the aerodrome safeguarding
zone as detailed in Policy 29 (Safeguarded Areas). Proposals within this zone will need to consider
the risk of potential bird strikes and choose appropriate SuDS techniques which will minimise any
risks.

Water Quality

5.400 It is important to consider the protection of water resources from pollution particularly when
assessing any development that has the potential to adversely affect water quality either above or
below ground, directly or cumulatively. The Magnesian Limestone Principal Aquifer underlies the
eastern part of the county and is a source of drinking water for both NWL and Hartlepool Water
Company. It is therefore vital that this resource is protected. Pollution can affect groundwater for

141 http://www.tynecatchment.org , http://www.wear-rivers-trust.org.uk/ and http://teesriverstrust.org/.
142 Emerging evidence from the Woodland Trust and Manchester University states that the planting of trees or woods in the right

locations can bring about improvements in water quality of 90% and can also help alleviate certain types of flooding.

199Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Page 13



many decades and may be impossible to remove completely, even after the source of the pollution
has been cleared up. The NPPF requires pollution prevention in new and existing development. Water
quality assessments will be required for any physical modifications to a watercourse or any
development which could adversely affect water bodies. Where appropriate, management plans will
be required to demonstrate sufficient pollution prevention measures, including maintenance
arrangements for agreed measures, have been incorporated into the development proposals. This
can include commercial enterprises which discharge trade effluent or where potentially polluting
materials are to be used/stored either during redevelopment works or as part of the new land use i.e.
use of tanks to store chemicals or fuels.

5.401 Where development is in close proximity to a watercourse then opportunities to improve the
river environment and water quality should be explored. This could include naturalising watercourse
channels, improving the biodiversity and ecological connectivity of watercourses, safeguarding and
enlarging river buffers with appropriate habitat or mitigating diffuse agricultural and urban pollution.

Sewage and Waste Water Infrastructure

5.402 NWL is the supplier of water and sewerage services for the county, looking after around 136
sewage treatment works. Changes in population distribution and economic growth over the Plan
period will increase demand on sewage treatment and the disposal of waste water. We have been
working closely with NWL and the Environment Agency to ensure there is adequate and timely
provision of treatment works in areas identified for growth in the Plan. This is a key part of the IDP
and the detail is contained in theWCS. In addition to these roles, once 'Sewers for Adoption 8' comes
into effect in 2019 regulatory Water and Sewerage Companies, in addition to the LLFA, will be able
to adopt SuDS going forward. The LLFA will remain a statutory consultee in relation to surface water
flood risk.

5.403 Priority should be given, where possible, to accommodate any additional flows within existing
sewage treatment works. Where new sewage treatment works are required there will need to be a
balance between meeting higher discharge standards, the environmental benefits of the development
and the protection of the existing environment and amenity.

5.404 Non-mains drainage systems, such as package treatment plants and septic tanks should
only be employed in non-sewered areas. Where they are required, careful consideration of their
siting and design will be required to ensure that there is no adverse impact upon ground water, water
quality or existing ecosystems. It is advised that any new development proposing the use of a
non-mains foul drainage system should be supported by a Foul Drainage Assessment (FDA1) as a
minimum. The form provides the information required to assess the development's impact, however
in certain instances further justification and/or assessment may be required to ensure no detriment
to the environment or quality of receiving water bodies.

5.405 Policy 32 (Amenity and Pollution) highlights that sensitive receptors, such as dwelling houses,
should not be built in close proximity to existing sewage treatment works as this is likely to lead to
amenity issues arising. A buffer has been provided in the policy to overcome these issues.

5.406 Increased demand for sewage treatment and higher water quality standards will mean that
in the future there will be additional sludge (a by-product of the process) to be disposed of. Proposals
for the recovery of sludge to produce beneficial end products will be encouraged where they can be
located without significant adverse effects on local communities or the environment.

5.407 Whilst this policy is applicable to all forms of development, a policy addressing the specific
requirements for Minerals and Waste proposals (the disposal of sewage sludge) will be contained in
the future Minerals and Waste Policies and Allocations Development Plan Document. The policy
approach to the Durham Coast is addressed separately in Policy 38 (Durham Heritage Coast and
Wider Coastal Zone).

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019200

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Page 14



Works Carried Out To or Near a Watercourse

5.408 Any works carried out to, or near, a watercourse, either open or closed, may require Water
Course Consent from the LLFA. Works within eight metres of a main river will require a Flood Risk
Activities Permit from the Environment Agency.

5.409 Any culverting, de-culverting or works affecting the flow of a watercourse require the prior
written consent of either the Environment Agency (for main rivers), or the council (for ordinary
watercourses) under the terms of the Land Drainage/Water Resources Act 1991 and Flood andWater
Management Act 2010. These regulatory bodies seek to avoid culverting and their consent for such
works will not normally be granted except as a means of access.

How will Policy 36 (Water Management) be monitored?

Indicator:

1. Number of water bodies which show Water Framework Directive improvement as a direct
consequence of new development.

2. Percentage of major developments which include SuDS.

Target:

1. An increasing trend.
2. 100%.

How will the Policy 37 (Water Infrastructure) be monitored?

Indicator:

1. Number of major developments permitted where connection to a mains sewer is not possible
and an alternative solution has not been secured.

Target:

1. Zero.

201Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Pre-Submission Draft January 2019

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Flood Risk Management Authorities for
County Durham
8 February 2019

Appendix 2

P
age 17



County Durham Plan Timetable
• Preferred Options Consultation

(ended 3rd Aug 2018)
• Pre-submission Draft Consultation

(28 Jan-8 March 2019)
• Submission (Summer 2019)
• Examination (Autumn/Winter

2019/20)
• Adoption (Summer 2020)

P
age 18



Preferred Options Consultation Summary
• 2 water policies in the plan
• 3990 comments made in

response to the Plan
• 33 comments made in

response to the water policies
• New NPPF July 2018
• Will continue to develop

policies in partnership

P
age 19



Water Management Policy Changes

• Flood Risk
- River flooding
- Surface Water

• SuDs
- GI

• Water Quality

P
age 20



Water Infrastructure

• Disposal of foul water
• Sewage and waste water infrastructure
• Flood Defence Infrastructure

P
age 21



Evidence Bases
• Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA)
• Water Cycle Study (WCS)

P
age 22



Consultation
• Key difference this time is that following

consultation the council can now only make
minor changes to the Plan.

• Any comments submitted during the
consultation will therefore be sent on to the
Inspector to be considered at the
Examination in Public.

P
age 23



Any questions or comments
Please provide any comments by 16:30 on 8th March 2019.

We encourage you to submit individual responses online at:
www.durham.gov.uk/future

Consultation email address is: cdpconsultation@durham.gov.uk

Member drop in sessions.
14:00-16:00 every Friday in the Durham Room.

Zoë Lewin 261921.

P
age 24



Stephen Merrett
Team Leader Partnerships and Strategic Overview
Durham and Tees Valley
Environment Agency

Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

Environment Agency Update February 2019

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 5c



Outline
The Six Year FCRM Investment Programme
Update on Allocations 2019 – 2021
Progress with EA Flood Alleviation Schemes (FAS) in
2017/18
Investment pipeline development
Asset maintenance
The future

P
age 26



3

Flood and coastal erosion risk management
North East Area
Investment Programme 2015 to 2021 – Indicative Schemes

£133m
6 year

programme

72.5m
Grant in Aid

5787
Properties

better
protected
from flood

risk 834
Properties

better
protected

from coastal
erosion

Delivering
(10%)

efficiency

£43.5m
Secured

or
identified

Requiring
£43.8m

Partnership
Contributions

Schemes
76 EA
190 LA
1 WC

£324k
Not yet

identified

Flood and coastal erosion risk management
North East Area
Investment Programme 2015 to 2021 – Indicative Schemes

P
age 27



Northumbria Wide Indicative Programme
2019/20 to 2020/21

The remaining two
years of the capital
programme totals
£41.2m

Including:
£18.1m FCRM GiA
£6.9m Local Levy
£16.2m Other sources

P
age 28



Durham County - Indicative Programme
2019/20 to 2020/21

8 schemes by DCC
2 EA scheme
Total £8.1m

Including:
£2.6m FCRM GiA
£0.6m Local Levy
£4.8m Other Sources

P
age 29



Durham County - Indicative Programme
Allocations for the remaining two years

19/20
- Chester-le-Street Deculvert (DCC – Ongoing from 18/19)
- Dunelm Walk (DCC)
- Shotley Bridge (DCC)
- NIDP – Anfield Plain and Stanley (Stage 1 – NWL and DCC)
- NIDP – Easington (Stage 1 – NWL and DCC)
- NIDP – South Stanley and Craghead (Stage 2 - NWL, DCC and EA)
- Weardale NFM (EA)
- Spring Gardens Dam (EA)

20/21
- NIDP – Anfield Plain and Stanley (Stage 2 - NWL, DCC and EA)
- NIDP – Easington (Stage 2 - NWL, DCC and EA)
- NIDP – Stanhope and Crawleyside (Stage 1 – NWL and DCC)
- NIDP – Ushaw Moor and Brandon (Stage 1 – NWL and DCC)

P
age 30



Figures from 16/17

P
age 31



2017/18 progress: Chester-le-Street
Flood Alleviation Scheme

• Project now led by DCC – partnership working has continued
• EA Outline Business Case completed & approved
• Assistance with £2.8m ERDF application for DCC submission
• £1.9m FCRM GiA & Local Levy
• Vision & design

P
age 32



Weardale Natural Flood Management
Demonstrator

P
age 33



P
age 34



Soil Bund at Belford

P
age 35



Leaky Barrier at Belford

P
age 36



P
age 37



Weardale NFM 2017/18 progress

• Full Business case submitted and approved
• £.5m project, £2.3m of GiA & LL
• Modelling completed & confirmed estimated peak reduction possible
• Key partners engaged
• Target outcomes:

• 300 properties better protected
• 200 ha of habitat created
• 500 ha of habitat restored

• Innovation & Risk
• Evaluation & Learning

P
age 38



Pipeline development
Critical that we prepare for 2021+
Asset replacement
Communities at risk
Northumbria Integrated Drainage Partnership
31 schemes in the pipeline (14 are NIDP studies or
potential NIDP schemes)

P
age 39



Frequent Maintenance Works

168 Assets in County Durham
107 defence walls and flood
embankments
57 FCeRM Structures and 2 land
drainage pumping stations

24 km of maintained channel
£216K allocation 2018-19

P
age 40



Future
New FCERM Strategy

Demonstrating new ways of working

Contributing to economic regeneration/growth

Integrated management of flood risk

Preparing for the next investment period

Brexit impacts

P
age 41



QUESTIONS?

P
age 42



Drainage & Coastal Protection Team Update
8 February 2019

Environment and Sustainable Communities
Overview & Scrutiny Committee

P
age 43



Summary

• Review for 2018/19
• Going Forward
• Medium Term Plan
• Working Groups
• Schemes

P
age 44



Review for 2018/19
• 18 DCC flood prevention schemes, value

£900,000
• 243 requests for flood investigations
• 3 kms of highway ditches cleansed
• Significant number of A road issues

investigated and resolved
• 350 planning application drainage designs

have been vetted
• 6 SuDS adoption agreements

P
age 45



Grant Funded Schemes
for 2017/18

Area
EA

£’000s
DCC

£’000s
Total

£’000s
Properties
Protected

Chester-le-Street £1,150 £750 £1,900 70
Dipton £65 £30 £95 1
Leadgate £11 £50 £61 4
Lanchester £130 £100 £230 44
Total £1,356 £930 £2,286 119

P
age 46



Going Forward

• 27 schemes and studies are in the
EA programme 2018 to 2027 for
funding, value £10.6 million

• Chester-le-Street Flood Prevention
Scheme started on site

P
age 47



Medium Term Investment Plan 2018-2027 (page 1 of 2)

Area Scheme
EA

£'000s
DCC

£'000s
NW

£'000s
Total

£'000s Year
Greta Bridge Flood alleviation scheme 67 0 0 67 2018/19
Dipton SW Flood
Management Works Flood alleviation scheme 65 30 0 95 2018/19

Dunelm Walk, Leadgate Flood alleviation scheme 11 50 0 61 2018/19
Shotley Bridge Surface
Water Flood alleviation scheme 46 45 0 91 2021/27
Silverdale Place,
Newton Aycliffe Flood alleviation scheme 102 118 0 220 2021/27
Hutton Grove, Haswell Flood alleviation scheme 60 90 0 150 2021/27
Kingfisher Close, Esh
Winning Flood alleviation scheme 67 88 0 155 2021/27
Patrick Crescent, South
Hetton Flood alleviation scheme 45 65 0 110 2021/27
Penshaw Close,
Langley Park Flood alleviation scheme 106 85 0 191 2021/27
The Bowers, Durham Flood alleviation scheme 48 119 0 167 2021/27
The Dene, Dalton le
Dale Flood alleviation scheme 29 62 0 91 2021/27

Cookson Place, Stanley Flood alleviation scheme 48 131 0 179 2021/27

P
age 48



Medium Term Investment Plan 2018-2027(page 2 of 2)

Area Scheme
EA

£'000s
DCC

£'000s
NW

£'000s
Total

£'000s Year
Castlefields, Bournmoor Flood alleviation scheme 0 36 0 36 2021/27
Craigland Villas Flood alleviation scheme 55 0 0 55 2021/27
Hillmeads, Nettlesworth Flood alleviation scheme 95 10 0 105 2021/27
New Brancepeth, Pringle
Place Flood alleviation scheme 132 28 0 160 2021/27
Dene Crescent, Sacriston Flood alleviation scheme 55 0 0 55 2021/27
California Row, Middleton
in Teesdale Flood alleviation scheme 60 40 0 100 2021/27
Wall Nook Flood Fence Flood alleviation scheme 30 30 0 60 2021/27
Seaham (North)
Promenade Study and repair 250 0 0 250 2021/27

Spennymoor
Integrated Drainage Study
Phase 2 20 30 50 50 2018/20

Barnard Castle
Integrated Drainage Study
Phase 2 20 30 50 50 2018/20

Sedgefield
Integrated Drainage Study
Phase 2 20 30 50 50 2018/20

Easington and Peterlee
Integrated Drainage Study
Phase 1 0 10 10 10 2018/20

Craghead and Stanley
Integrated Drainage Study
Phase 1 0 10 10 10 2018/20
Totals 1,431 1,137 170 2,568

P
age 49



Working Groups
• Durham Strategic Flood Group
• Northumbrian Regional Flood and Coastal

Committee
• Northumbrian Integrated Drainage

Partnership
• Northumbrian Water Liaison Group
• Lead Local Flood Authority Regional SuDS

Group
• Northumbrian Water Operational Group

P
age 50



• Lanchester has suffered a number of
flooding issues over the years

• Using £230,000 of EA funding and
partnership working with EA and NW we
are now completing a scheme to
provide protection up to 1 in 100 years
to the Front Street area

Schemes: Lanchester

P
age 51



Lanchester – Newbiggen Lane
Front Street

Newbiggin Lane

Alderdene Culvert Repair

P
age 52



Chester-le-Street
• We have secured a funding package for a

scheme in Chester-le-Street made up of:
Funding Millions

£
EA Flood Defence Grant in Aid £1.4
EA Local Levy £0.5
ERDF £2.8
DCC £1.5
Total £6.2

P
age 53



Chester-le-Street
Location

P
age 54



Chester-le-Street Visualisation
Looking East from Tesco

P
age 55



Chester-le-Street Visualisation
Looking West from Front Street

P
age 56



Chester-le-Street
Working with NW to move a combined sewer from
the end of the culvert

P
age 57



Chester-le-Street
Install into a new location

P
age 58



Joint Studies with NW
• Looking at the whole drainage catchment

from an integrated high level perspective
Stage 1 Completed
• Barnard Castle, Sedgefield and Bowburn
• These areas are now moving to a stage 2

study
• Drilling down in more detail to problem

areas
Stage 1 Next
• Easington, Peterlee and Stanley/Cragside

P
age 59



Flooding Examples
Crook – A6298

P
age 60



Flooding Examples
Dipton – A692

P
age 61



Flooding examples
Lanchester A691

P
age 62



Any
Questions?

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SPECIAL ENVIRONMENT  AND
SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES
DURHAM

NWG OVERVIEW

8 February 2019

Steena Nasapen Watson
Sustainable Sewerage ManagerP

age 65



KEEPING CUSTOMERS UP TO DATE ON LINE

P
age 66



UPDATE ON COMPLETED SEWER NETWORK SCHEMES
WITHIN COUNTY DURHAM

• West Grove Seaham
• Woods Terrace, Murton -17/18
• Stephen’s Road, Murton – 17/18
• Durham Road, Spennymoor

• Forrest Park, Aycliffe – 17/18
We are investing over £1,000,000 to improve and extend the
sewer network to support Durham County Council’s ongoing
Forrest Park development. This will include constructing a new
sewage pumping station on the Forrest Park development site
and over 1.5km of pumping main and gravity sewer along the
A167, St Andrew’s Way and Heighington Lane.

• Durham Road, Spennymoor – 17/18
We are investing £700,000 in upgrading the sewer network. This
will increase the resilience and reliability of the network and will
involve up sizing 240 meters of existing sewer pipe in the area of
Wood Vue and the nearby Cow Plantation Nature Reserve.

P
age 67



UPDATE ON CURRENT SEWER NETWORK SCHEMES
WITHIN COUNTY DURHAM

Durham City Sewer Network Improvements
We are planning work to improve the performance of the sewer network in Durham City and improve the environment.

• FLASS VALE
• We are planning to increase the capacity of the sewer network to reduce the risk of flooding from a sewer that runs through

Flass Vale. This will be done by constructing an underground storage tank in land at the end of Flassburn Road.
• ELVET RIVERSIDE
• We are planning to upgrade the sewer network in the area around Elvet riverside to improve how it operates, particularly

during wet weather. We will be undertaking survey work to help us develop our preferred solution which is but this is likely to
involve new pipes and manholes in the area around Old Elvet, New Elvet, Elvet Waterside and Territorial Lane.

• WALKERGATE
• We are planning to upgrade the sewer network in the area around Freemans Quay and Walkergate to improve how it

operates, particularly during wet weather. We will be undertaking survey work to help us develop our preferred solution
which is but this is likely to involve new pipes and manholes in the area between Walkergate and the River Wear.

• ESCOMB RISING MAIN
• ALUM WATERS NEAR BRANCEPETH

P
age 68



UPDATE ON PLANNED SEWER NETWORK SCHEMES
WITHIN COUNTY DURHAM

DESIGN, INVESTIGATIONS AND STUDIES

• Lindon road, Ferryhill
Framework Partners are progressing with property level protection. NWG/Esh-Stantec still investigating/surveys the

network in the Linden Road and surrounding area before modelling work the options from the previous feasibility study will
be reviewed and some brief optioneering to explore any smaller scale interventions will also take place.

• Dell Wood - Bishop Auckland
This project involves fixing Screening Baskets to the existing CSO overflow to the existing storage tank to reduce problems
with pump blockages in the storage tank. Esh-Stantec are due to complete Investigate and Define report which will
recommend providing new lift assist access covers to the existing cover-slab in the short term and longer term replace or
modify existing cover-slab to provide access covers directly over the new screening baskets.  Construction expected to
commence in the second Quarter of 2019 but this is to be confirmed.

Update on current work – Albert Street, Durham :
• Following a number of bursts towards the end of last year which caused some flooding to cellars, our supply partners are

in the process of renewing the water main in Albert Street, Durham. This is a residential street near to the train station
which runs up to St. Leonards catholic school.

• The work started on Monday 7th January and is expected to last 10 weeks, with a road closure and parking restrictions
in place for the duration of the work. We are keeping residents updated as the work progresses.

P
age 69



Barkershaugh Sewage Treatment Works

Work will involve the introduction of further process units to serve the increasing population of Durham City and
provide an enhancement of the treatment process to improve environmental protection.

Start Date: December 2017 Estimated End Date: December 2018

River Gaunless, Bishop Auckland

We are investing £6 million to improve the sewer network and wastewater treatment in the Butterknowle, Cockfield and
Ramshaw areas of Bishop Auckland.

Start Date: October 2018 Estimated End Date: January 2019

SEWAGE TREATMENT WORKS INVESTMENT

P
age 70



Rainwise
Projects In Durham
County

P
age 71



Rainwise Areas

Crook
Two Rainwise projects have been identified at High Hope Street
and Firtree Drive. Design & construction currently programmed
for 18/19

Bishop Auckland
Rainwise projects have been identified at Granville Terrace,
Meadows View and Greenfields Road, they are currently
programmed for 19/20

Seaham
Interventions identified at Byron Terrace, The Avenue, Grants
Crescent and Seaham Leisure Centre, currently programmed for
20/21

Barnard Castle
Two areas have been risk scored and a strategic study has now
been recommended.

Stanley & Annfield Plain
A Rainwise project has been identified at Derwent Terrace and it is
currently programmed for 19/20

Easington
Proposed interventions have been submitted for risk scoring, it is
likely that they will not meet current investment criteria

P
age 72



JOINT WORKING

P
age 73



STRATEGIC AREA STUDIES

NIDP Stage 1 Bowburn Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC y Feasibility
2017/18

NIDP Stage 1 Sedgefield Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC y Feasibility
2017/18

NIDP Stage 1 Barnard Castle Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC y Feasibility
2017/18

NIDP Stage 1 Easington Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC y Feasibility
2018/19

NIDP Stage 1 South Stanley & Craghead Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC y Feasibility
2018/19

NIDP Stage 2 Bowburn Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC
/FDGiA/LL y Feasibility

2018/19

NIDP Stage 2 Sedgefield Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC
/FDGiA/LL y Feasibility

2018/19

NIDP Stage 2 Barnard Castle Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC
/FDGiA/LL y Feasibility

2018/19

NIDp Stage 2 Easington Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC
/FDGiA/LL y Feasibility

2019/20

NIDP Stage 2 South Stanley & Craghead Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC
/FDGiA/LL y Feasibility

2019/20

NIDP Stage 1 Stanhope & Crawleyside Elaine Smith NWL NWL/DCC y Feasibility
2019/20

P
age 74



JOINT WORKING

• Catchment partnership engagement within Catchment Based Approach
(CaBA), development and delivery of business plan for Wear Catchment
Partnership

• Wear Rivers Trust, initiation of local delivery groups on the Browney (8
waterbodies but may focus around Lanchester to start with).

• Support for HLF (Heritage Lottery Fund) projects - Seascape project –
(wear-tees coast) James MacLean is on the Board, Brightwater (Skerne –
upper bit is in Durham)

• Exploring opportunities around improving the water environment and new
partnership scheme delivery – starting with a Wear/Durham opportunities
session next week hosted by us but led by Visit County Durham.

• Undertaking feasibility studies for Catchment Based Approach
(unconfirmed) – ahead of phosphate removal scheme in 2020-25 in
Browney, Gaunless, Croxdale catchments. Also undertaking delivery
schemes at 2 works in the Gaunless this year.

• CaBA Urban workshop on 15th Feb – idea is to launch a SuDS challenge to
LAs and developers and link to a prize (Water Hub are involved).

P
age 75



ADOPTION OF SUDS - UPDATE

• SFA 8 will allow some types of SuDS to be offered to WaSCs
for adoption by Developers (it would be great if Highway
authorities considered encouraging the use of highways suds
and the adoption of them)

• Currently planning/LLFA comment on SuDS however when
SFA 8 goes live NW will also need to be involved

• NW are planning a Developers launch event in March for SFA
8 and intend to include LLFA and Planning reps from all
partners due to the need to all work together

P
age 76



ENGAGEMENT WITH LANDOWNERS

• Pre development enquiries and planning processes (development control through planning applications and
Local Plan consultation)

• Local Plan Consultation : Once again we are fully involved in playing our statutory consultation role which
allows us to understand the impact of their preferred development sites for allocation within the plan on our
current assets. As part of this process, we will look for the opportunities for partnership working where the
drainage infrastructure for multiple landowners is required (for e.g.Sniperly and North of Arnison).

• SfA 8 impacts ; Landowners, developers and RMAs

• Catchment Based Approach : landowner involvement

CHALLENGES AND OPPORTUNITIES :
• More holistic outcome
• Takes longer – more engagement
• Different work streams : common objectives
• Balance sustainable goals : economic, environment and social benefits
• Aligning funding

P
age 77



Thank you for listening

QUESTIONS

P
age 78


	Agenda
	5a Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships
	5b Water management in the emerging County Durham Plan - Progress:
	Flood Risk Management PowerPoint

	5c Presentations by the Flood Risk Management Authorities for County Durham:
	Drainage and Coastal Protection PowerPoint
	Northumbrian Water PowerPoint


